© ©® N O ¢ s W N =

O ~N O & W N =+ Ofe o N A WM 2O

| (1‘a5e 3:08-cv-00170-LDG-RAM Document 1 Filed 04/02/2009

HANSON BRIDGETT LLP

mvanzandt@hansonbridgett.com
425 Market Street, 26th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94105
Telephone: §415; 777-3200
Facsimile: (415) 541-9366

q’ardin churchillda.org

55 N. Taylor Street, Suite 156-B
Fallon, NV 89406 |
Telephone: (775) 423-6561

MACKEDON, MCCORMICK & KING

falonlaw@phonewave.net
179 S. LaVeme Street
Fallon, Nevada 89407
Telephone: (775) 423-2106

Attomeys for Plainiiffs‘ ,

CHURCHILL COUNTY, CITY OF
FALLON AND THE TRUCKEE-
CARSON IRRIGATION DISTRICT,

.Plaintiffs,
V.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
THE INTERIOR; KEN SALAZAR,
Secretary of the United States
Department of Interior; UNITED
STATES BUREAU OF
RECLAMATION; J. WILLIAM
MCDONALD, Acting Commissioner of
the United States Bureau of
Reclamation,

Defendants.

- MICHAEL J. VAN ZANDT - NV Bar No. 7199

CHURCHILL COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE
RUSTY D. JARDINE - NV Bar No. 4296

MICHAEL F. MACKEDON - NV Bar No. 2388

CHURGHILL COUNTY, CITY OF FALLON, and THE
TRUCKEE-CARSON IRRIGATION DISTRICT ;

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA

Page 1 of 43

Case No.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

-1-

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

EXHIBIT




© 0 N O O s 0N =2

mqmmhwm—sowmﬂmmhwwao.

Gase 3:09-0V-00170-LDG—RAM. Document 1  Filed 04/02/2009 Page 2 of 43

L INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiffs Churchill County, City of Fallon, and the Truckee-Carson Irrigation
District bring this action challenging the adequacy of a Final Environmental Impact
StatementlEnvironmental tmpact Report ("FEIS/EIR’) jointly-issued by the United States
Deparlment of Interior and the Califonia Department of Water Resources, approving the
Truckee River Operating Agreement (‘'TROA”) as the preferred alternative among.
alternatives consid_ered. The t‘rngl agency action authorized by the FEI_S!EIR is the
adoption and implemeritation of TROA. ‘fhe challenged FEIS/EIR concludes, without
adequate basis, that TROA would create no significant environmental |mpact while
omlthng adequate analyses of TROA and its altematives, and omrttlng other required
analyses. In creating and approving the deficient FEIS/EIR, and approving and entering:
into TROA, Deiendar.rts have violated the provisions of the National Er;vironnrental Policy
Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321, et seq., the Adminisfrative Procedure Act,’S US.C.§§551 6t
seq and these statutes’ |mplementmg regulatlons '

-2, Plaintiffs also challenge the promulgation of TROA as a Federal

' _ Regulatlon Publrc Law 101-618, which required ihe creation of TROA and its

prornulgatron as a federal regutation, provides at § 205(a)(5) that TROA will be subject
fo judiciat review undef the standard set forthin5U.S.C. § 706(2)(A) (D). Defendants
have violated the APA by enacting'a regulation that is subsiantively unsupported, results
in the violation of existing, valid court decrées. violation of federal and state law,
assurrles ultra vires abrr)gation of private property rights, and proceeds from a
negofiation and drafting pror:ess that contravenes the requirements of the Fe&eral
Advisory Committee Act.

Plaintiffs seeks a declaration that Defendérrts' actions have violated the National
Environmental Policy Act, the Administrative Procedures Act, and the Federal Advisory
Committee Act. "Plaintiffs seek an order (1) vacating approval of the FEIS/EIR and
Defendants’ subséquent adoption of TROA as the planned agency action; and (2)
setting aside TROA as a fedéral regulation. Plaintiffs seek an injunction preventing

-2-
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_Defendants from taking action 1o implement TROA as a federal regulation and as the

operating agreement governing storage and release of waters from the Tryckee River
until such time as (1) a supplemental Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental

lhpact Report with adequate analysis of TROA’s impacts and reasonable alternatives to

TROAIs completed and approved; (2) a reasonable substantive and procedural basis is

astablished for a revised federal rule that is not violative of the APA; and (3) the
requirements of FACA are establishéd and 'sati;sﬁed" in cbnr‘lection with a revised and
reevaiuated TROA. |
' | Il. . JURISDICTION AND VENUE

- 3. This Court has ;urisdlctlon over this action by virtue of 28 U.S.C. §1331
which applies to actions arising under the laws of the United States; Public Law 101-618,
104 stat. 3289, at § 205(a)(5), which provides for jurisdiction of the Nevada District Court
in connecﬁop with judlcual review of promulgatlowof the-Truckee River Operating
Agreement; and United States v. Alpine Land and Reservoir Co., 174 F.3d 1007, 1012-
1013 (9th Cir. 1'999), which pybvides, inter .a!ia. that the Orr' Ditch Decree Court has
exclusive, continuing .jurisdiction over matters implicating the Orr Ditch Decree. )

4.  Plaintiffs’ claims arise under the National Environmental Policy Act, 42
U.S.C. §§ 4321, ef seq. ("NEPA"), the Administrative Pracedure Act, 5 U.5.C. §§551 ot
seq. (‘APA"), and the Federal Advusory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C."App. 2 §§ 1 ef seq. '
(“FACA"), and these statutes’ implementing’ regulations

5. Venue lies in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

6. An actual controversy exists between the parties within the meaning of 28

U.S.C. § 2201(a). This Court may grani declaratory relief and additional reliefas |

authonzed by 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202
. III. PARTIES
7. Plamllff Churchill County is a politicat subdivision of the state of Nevada
Chprchill County encompasses approximately 4,900 sq. miles of agncultural lands,

desert, mountains and valleys, and contains approximately 27,000 persons. Churchill
-3.
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County is also the home of the Fa!lon Paiute-Shoshone Tribe, a number of Iakes
expansive wetlands and wildlife refuge areas, and the U. S. Naval Air Station at Fallon
Churchill County’s chief administrative offices are located at 155 N. Taylor Street Fallon,
Nevada, 89406. Churchill County comprises a portlon of the geographical area covered
by the federal Néwlands Reclamation Prolect and is a Project water nght holder. Many
of TCID's constituents are also citizens of Churchiil County.

) 8. Plaintiff City of Fallon is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.
Fél[ori is both the cou.:mty seat of Churchill. County and the largest city within Churchill
County with a population of approximately 9000. Fallon's-address is City Hall, 55 W. -
Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada, 89406 Fallon is within the geographical region .
covered by the Newlands Reclamation Project and is a Project water nght holder.

9. Plaintiff Truckee-Carson lmgatlon District ("TCID") is a Nevada imigation
district-organized pﬁrsuantto and for the purposes provided for in Nevada Revised

Statutes Chapter 539. TCIDisa political subdivision of the State of Nevada, organized

‘and chartered in 1918 for the purpose of representing the water right holders within the

boundaries of the federal government’s Newlands Reclamation Project (“Newlands -
Project”). Pursuant to its contract.with the United States, TCID has solely rﬁanaged. _
maintained and operatéd the Newlands Project for more than 80 years. The Newlands '
Project Ié located within Churchill and Lyon Counties in Nevada,'and'encompase;.és over
600 miles of canals, laterals and drains for the purpose of providing irigation, wildlife,
and munfclpal and industriat water to over 3,000 water right owners. The sources of
water used to meet the delivery requirements include the Truckee River and the waters
of Donner Lake. ' ' .

10. -Plaintiffs have exhausted their administrative remedies. Plaintiffs and their

1 representatlves have participated in the adminisirative proceedings leading to the final

promulgatnon of the TROA as a federal regulation, and the FEIS/EIR.on whlch itis

based, mc!udmg attendance at public hearings, meelings aqd discussions with

interested parties, and submission of staieinents.'reports and other written comments to

-4 -
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[ Secretary of DOI, Dirk Kempthorne_. formally approving the FEIS/EIR and adopting the

' the new Reclamation Act. Also in 1903, the United States posted notrces of its.intent to

Defendants ell of which have, or should have, placed Defendants on notice that the
regulatron FEIS/EIR, and its prior drafts, suffered from serious flaws and infirmities
rendering them tegally insufficient under apphcable federal and state law.

11. Defendant United States Department Of Interior (“DOI™™) is an agency of
the federal government. In conjunction with the California Department of Water
Resources, DOI, th'rough its subdivision, the United States Bureau of Reclamation,
conducted and approved the environmental analysis set forth in the FEIS/EIR and its

earlrer drafts. In September 2008, DOl issued a Record of Decision, signed by the

TROA. ' o ‘ .

1-2. " Defendant Ken éélazar is named in his official capacity as Secretary of the
United States Department of Interior. . -

13. D_efendant United States Bureau of Reclamédon (“BOR") is a bureau within
the DOI. BOR, In conjunction with the Gal'rfon;ia Department of Water Resources
("DWR"), conducted the environmenta! analysis set forth-in the FEIS/EIR and its earlier
drafts. | | .

14. Defendant J. William McDonald is named in his official capacity as Acting
Commissioner of the United States Bureau of Reclamation. '
| IV. FACTS

15. " In 1902, the United States Congress passed the federal Reclamation Act to
reclaim arid lands of the west in order to éstablish farming com_mumtres. In 1903, the
Secretary of 'lnt'erior designated the Truckee-Carson Reclamation Project (now called the

Newlands Reclamation Project), near Fallon, Nevada, as one of the first projects under

appropnate water rights from the Truckee River for the Newlands Pro;ect In 1913, the

United States brought suit in the Federal District Court for the District of Nevada to quiet .

title to a portion of the waters of the Truckee River in Nevada for the benefit of the

farmers in the Newlands Project and for the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe of Indians. The
. .5.
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quiet title suit is styled as United States v. O Water Ditch. Company, Case No. Equity A-
3, LDG, U.S. District Ceurt for Nevada ("Orr Ditch™). In 1926, the BOR contracted with
TCID to operate and maintain the Newlands Project. )

16. In 1935, the parties to the Orr .Ditch case entered info an agreement,
known as the Truckee _Ri_vet Agreement.("TRA"), to provide for the management of water
resources on the Truckee River. Each party, including the United States, agreed to -
abide By the terms of the TRA and’ stipulated to entry of the O Ditch Decree in
accordance with the terms set forth in the TRA. In 1944, the Nevada Federal District
Court entered the final Omr Ditch Decree, which the court approved; adopted, and made-

a part of the decree, and made the TRA binding as between the signatory parties to the

TRA. The TRA, as incorporated by the Orr Diich Decree, has remained as the binding

document for the management of the Truckee River for the last 73 years.

17.  TROA was mandated by Public taw 101-618 passect by the 101st
Congress at the end of Its 1990 session. Pubhc Law 101-618, 104 stat, 3289, ‘November
16, 1990, was intended to seftie a number of outstanding disputes concerning the

allocation and uses of Truckee and Carson River waters, Indeed, these waters have

" been the subject of multitudinous litigation stretching from the edrliest years of the last

century to the present. Public Law 101-618 purported to establish a framework,
contingent in-part on other parties reaching accord in their respective disputes. for a final

settlement of all claims, Section 204 of Publtc Law 101-618 establishes the respective

'water allocatlons for the states of Nevada and Callfomla from the Truckee and Carson

Rivers and Lake Tahoe. Section 205 orders the Secretary of the United States

Department of inferior to rtegotiate an operating agreement with the states of Nevada

and California and other “interested parties” to be designated by the Secretary to govern
the operation of certain dams and reservoirs in the Lake Tahoe and 'Trui:kee River
Basins. TROA is the result of these negotiations. ‘ |

18.  The chief elements of a first-draft TROA were established by May 1996. In

February 1998, the DOI and DWR_jointIy issued a draft environmental impact
. ) 6.
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: posltion that the REIS/EiR failed to satisfy the requirements of both NEPA and |ts

alternativeé and failed to identify a legitimate basis for dismissing the alternatives

" course of inquiry and failed to provide necessary back-up data fegarding the propo;sals i

_not be released to the public. The REIS/EIR omitted key environmental impact analyses,

statement!environﬁiéntal impact report evaluatiﬁg tﬁe draft TROA and a No Action
Altemative. As TROA nedotiaﬁons é:ontinued. and the TROA draft changed, DOI/DWR
preparéd a revised draft environmental impact statemenVenvironmental impact report
(“REIS/EIR"), which was released for public comment in August 2004 along with the draft
TROA. | |

. 19.  The original public comment period was scheduled to terminate on October
24, 2004, Hov&evgr, because of the complexity and breadth of the issues addressed,
numerous commenting parties requested extension of the comment period, including
TCIlj, which requested a four-month extension. DOl refﬁsed'to grant more than a two-
month extension and the period of public comment closed on December 30, 2004.

20. TCID prov:ded extensive comments to the REIS/EIR, setting forth its

Caltfprnla—state corollary the California Envnronmental Quallly Act ("CEQA"). Among
other things, TCID pointed out that the REIS/EIR failed to assass a sufficient range of

considered énd rejected. The REIS!EiR failed to explicate and suppo]t the drafters’

considered and rejected. The REIS/EIR failed to adequately describe the cusrent
environmental setting and its baseline conditions. Tl.1e_ REIS/EIR was overlong,
convoluted, and needles;ty abstruSe. The REIS/EIR defined the prbject so narrowly that
other alternatives besides TROA were necessarily rejected. The REIS/EIR incorporated
other documents into its analysis without properly summarizing them. The computer
modeling program upon which the ﬁnding:s of the REIS/EIR depended lacked scientific
integrity and soundness. The BOR did not 'provide any dpc‘uments for the computer
model used in the analysis, and when a request was made by TCID, the BOR responded

that the documentation was protected by the attorney work product doctrine and would

and the analysis done was faulty. The REIS/EIR's failed to adequately analyze overall
-7
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water use, supply, and c‘onsumptior'\ vis-a-vis TROA. Tt'1é REIS/EIR did not account for
pdpul_alion growth and extended drought condition. The ﬁEISIEIR ihadequateiy
assessed cumulative impacts. And the RElSIEIR impermissibly analyzed only segments
of the project rather than the project in toto

. 21, Churchill County. also provided extensive comments to the REISIEIR As
with many other commenters, Churchill County asked for an extension of time tp review
the thousand-plus page REIS/EIR, nt;ling that the future of “the entire Lahontan Valley is
inextricably linked to the Newlands Project and diversion criteria that are-to be governed,
ostensibly, by TROA” while nofifying Defendants that “[ojur citizens, our farmers, need

much-more fime to view the shape their collective futures will take.” In a later comment

] tetter, Churchil County also fook Issue with the computer modeling on which the

REISIEIR was based. Churchill County observed that the Truckee River Operating
Model was substantially unchanged from the model that was successfully challenged
during development of an earlier draft EIS/EIR report in 1998. Churchill County also
asked tobe supplled with a copy of the operating mode! “along with details and
assumptlons assoclated with the model and water flow analysis, aswell asanyand all |
sub functions or anciliary routines written to integrate data which did not fit the original
model” as well-as the “operating and running instructions required for the model to
function.” The response to Churchill County s request was wholly madequate dnits fi nal
comments letter, Churchill County ldentlf ied numerous areas of deficiency in the |
REIS/EIR. These included: 1) deficiencies, omissions, invalid assumptlons, and lack of
validation of the Truckee River Operaling Model; 2) The REIS/EIR's lack of established
and validated baseline conditibns for use in comparative analysis; 3) The RElSIEIR';s
lack of analysis of the occurrence and impact of multiple drought years in succession, an
event common in the history of the Truckee River; 4) The REIS/EIR's lack of sufficient
differentiation between altematives offered for analysis and all reasonable altemnatives;
5) The existence of an analytical imbatance in the REIS/EIR between the level of

research devoted to the upper Truckee River compared to the lower Truckee River; and,
-8-
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6) The REIS/EIR’s lack of a written commitment or stated requirement to follow
implemematii)n of TROA with multi-year impact monitoring and veﬁﬁgﬁbh of REIS/EIR

. conclusions.

22. The City of Fallon also provided comments to the REIS/EIR. -As with other
commenters, the city requested an extension of the comments peridd in order to more
sufficiently address the many issues raise in the long and complicated REIS/EIR. The

city also disputed the validity of the Truckee River Operation Model, voicing the same

1 concerns over its lack of verification, validation or calibration as other commenters. The

city also demanded that the REISEIR mclude an honest presentation of the cument
operating conditions of the Truckee River® and noted that the REISIEIR is constructed

on a fictitious baseline” usmg input data which erroneously depicts downstream water

) nghts owners, like the city, yielding to upstream claims w1thout any basis for assumlng

- 80,

23.  Other commenters took excephon to the REIS/EIR. In its, comments the
Sierfa Club expressed concem that the RE!S/EIR failed to adequately address the issue
of climate change and questioned the reliability ‘of the computer-generated water
modeling on which the entire REISIE'I‘R depended, stating: "Although we understand
that the Truckee Rivér water model is based o the last 100 years of precipitationflow
data, we are concerned that the next-100 years may not follow the historic precedents, in
view of global warming. ... [W]e would prefer to have mode! runs in the EIS on ﬁotential
reductions in water supplies - due to extended droughts exacgrbated by global warming
- and their environmental impacts as well as a’proéess seot up for &ealing with less than
modeled future water supphes |

24. The Lahontan Valley Enwronmental Alliance (“Env:ronmental Alliance”)
also expressed concern regarding the adequacy and ramifications of the Truckee River
Operalions Model on which the REIS/EIR was based, commenting that no modeling was
done to assess the impact of the probable absence of Newlands Project Credit Water

and that the model assumed-acquisition of p}iva,te water rights that might notbe
-9- '
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obtained. The Environmental Alliance also expressed concern that the REIS/EIR did not
assess the health implications of ising dust levels in agricultural lands de—watered by
TROA, and observed that the “No Action® and “Proposed Action” aﬂematwes were

essentially the same, leaving future events unmodeled and calling into doubt the |

‘REIS/EIR's statement of “no significant impact.”.

25  Defendants and the DWR took the public comments under submission as

| of December 30, 2004.

26. - in 2006 the California Iegnslature passed the “Global Waming So!utlons

Act” The act's leguslatnve ﬁndnngs slate that “Global warming poses a serious threat to

_ the economic well-being, public health natural resources, and the environment of

California. The potential adverse impacts of global warming include ... a reduction in the
quality and supply of water to the state from the Sierra 8now pack ... .” _ .
27 In 2007 the California legislature amended CEQA to clearly establish that
green house gas emlssions (*GHGs") and the effecls of GHGs are appropriate subjects
for CEQA analysls ' A 2008 Technical Advisory from the Govemor's Office of Planning
and Research relating 1o "CEQA And Climate Change" states that “[each public agency
that is a lead agency for complymg with CEQA needs to develop its own approach to

performing a climate change anaiysis... .” “This same dowment references land use

~plans and policies that encourage or discourage production of GHGs. .

28.  On January 25, 2008, DOI/BOR and DWR jointly |ssued the Final EIS/EIR
("FEiSIEIR"). While the FEIS/EIR included numerous changes, the extensive violations
of NEPA and CEQA set forth in the comment letters submitted to the agenbies in

" response to the REIS/EIR remalned substantally intact, bemg either :gnored or

insufficiently addressed. Significantly, despite commenters’ ooncems regarding the
failure to run computer modeled analyses taking into account potential environmental .
impacts caused by reductions in water supplies due to droughts exacerbated by global
warming, the FEIS/EIR essentially ignored the issue of global warming impacts.
29. On September 5, 2008, Dirk Kempthorne, in his capaclty as then-Secretary
-10-
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of the DO, signed the Record of Deeision pertaining to TROA. The Record of Decision '
identifies the agency’s action as adoption of TROA and sets forth TROA as the preferred
altematlve under the FEIS/EIR. '

'30. On September 6, 2008, TROA was signed by seventeen parties, including
the DO, by Dirk Kempthome in his mpacrty as Secretary of the DOV, the State of

. Nevada, by Allen Biaggi, Director of the Department of Conservation and Natural

Resources, the State of California, by Mike Chrisman, Secretary of California’s
Resources Agency (sald to be in consultation with and on behalf of the Califomia

egencies identifed in TROA and as designee of the Govemor for all purposes required

. by the Settlement Act), the Truckee Meadows Water Authorlty and the Pyramid Lake

Paiute Tribe of Indians, among others.

31. On September 10, 2008, the DWR submitied to the California State
Clearing House DWR's Notice of Determinatron regarding TROA. The Notice describes
the agency action as “the signing, adoption, and implementation of the Truckee t?iver :

Operating Agreement by the State of California .. . including the changing of Califomia

- water rights permits and licenses o allow water storage transfers, and exchanges

provided for jn the Negotiated Agreement " The Notice references the FEISIElR and
states that no significant adverse impacts were identified therein and consequently no
tn'rtigation efforts were identified or required. | ' '

32. Even as DWR issued ils NOD in September 2008, predicated on a
FEIS/EIR that basically ignored the issue of global warming impacts, the DWR's web site
wamed: "“Climate change is already impecﬁrig California’s water resouroes.. In the future,
warmer temperatures, different patterns of precipitation and runeff, and _risin'g sea levels
will profoundly affect the ability to manage water supplies and other natural resources.
Adapting California’s water management systems to clirnate change presents one of the
most significant challenges for the 21st century.” See . .

www.water.ca.gov/climatechange/.
33. On September 15, 2008, the BOR announced in the Federal Register the

-11-
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opening of a 60-day cémmenl period for TROA's planned adoption as a federal rule. on
November 14, 2008, TCID submitted writien comments to the BOR. These comments

noted, infer alia, that the regulation as it is currently drafted violates numerous provisions

~ of the Orr Ditch Decree, the Tr'uckee_ River Agreement, Public Law 101-618, and Nevada

state law, that it violates the separation of powers doctrine; that it assumes ultra vires
authbn'ty to abrogate private property rights; and is based ona computer model found by
the government's own expérts to be wholly unreliable. -

34, TCID also commented that the very process by which TROA was
negotiated constituted a violation of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (‘FACA")
because defendénts; relied on extra-governmental TROA negotiation participants to
advise them on key factual matters while at the same time failing to adhere to procedural
and informational transparency requnrements set forth in FACA

35. - On December 5, 2008, the B8OR promulgated TROA asa final rule inthe
Federal Register, to be codified at 43 C.F.R. part 419 In its promulgation texl the BOR
either ignored or provided inadequate responses fo the comments contained in Y TCID's
November 14, 2008 letter. '

36. TROA became effective asa federal regulatton on January 5, 2009.

-37. Implementation of TROA wiill result in significant negative impacts on the
environmental and economic heaith of TCID and those receiving water through TCID's
activities. Among other things, TROA modifies procedures and requirements for the
storage, use, and dlstnbutlon of water to the Newlands Project Changes in reservoir
storage activities as well as conversion of agricultural Iand and water to industrial and
municipal uses entailed by TROA would d|rec11y result in shortages of water available to
TCID and the Nevﬂands Project with potentially disastrous consequences. Among other
uses, the Newlands Project supplies water to wetlands at the Stillwater Wildlife Refuge

and Carson Lake and Pasture. The Stillwater Wildlife Refuge Wetlands have been

~ designated a site of intemnational importance by the Western Hemispheric Shorebird

Reserve Network because of the hundreds of thousands of shorebirds, such as Long-
’ -12-
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: i)ille’d dowitcher, Black-necked stilt, and American avocet passing through during

migration. Similarly, the Carson Lake and Pasture, comprising approximately 22.000
acres of weflands in the south-eastem portion of the Lahontan Valley, is also recognlzed
as a significant wetland area providing habitat for thousands of mlgratory birds. Loss of
water to wellands dependent on water from the Newlands Project could have harmful
effects on the wetlands environment and the wildlife dependeynt on an adequate supply
of water to them. | |
38. Loss of water to the Newlands Pro;ect would also have adverse effects on

groundwater supplies within the Newlands Pro;ect’s geographlc confines. Irigation
water not only supplies water for agricultural crop growth, it recharges the underground
aquifer on which TCID members, Churchill County, the City of Fallon and citizens of the
community. depend for well water and the community water supply. As aquifer recharge |
slows due to declining irrigation, the water table drops, often Below the current level of
existing wellé leaving families without watey for drinking and other purposés. Loss of

agricultural |mgatlon water also threatens degradatlon of the environment within areas

de-watered by TROA, mcludlng within geographlc confines of the Newlands Project.

. The soil of previously productlve hlgh-desert farmlands, when deprived of water, is.

known to become dry and unstable, leading to a “dust bowl" effect as particulate matter
becomes airbome. Such air polhition threatens both human and animal heaith. TROA’s

de-watering of farmland within the Newlands Project also threatens the eoonomlc

- destruction of TCID members whose livelihood depend on_crbps imigated by the

Newlénds Project.

39. TROA also represents an unexamined decislon to supply municipal and
industrial purposes at the expense of agricultural uses encompassed by the Newlands
Project. The historical back drop to TROA reaches to the mid-80s when the Public
Senvices Commission in Nevada threatened to stop issuing *will serve” letters necessary
for permilted construction of new industrial and residential buildings, particularly in ihe

areas serviced by the Truckee Meadows Water Authority, which supplies water to the .
-13.
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fast-growing Reno-Sparks aree;. Much of the impetus for TROA was to find ways to
service growth in the fom of water supply to new residential and induétrial construction.
The FEIS/EIR failed to analyze the_grqwth inducing impacts of providing additional water
resources to the cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County, Nevada, as; a result of
the implementation of TROA. Such construction threatens the environment of TCID .
members with degradatuon of air and water quality, lncludlng a dramatic, and as yet
unexamlned increase in Green House Gas Emissions entailed by such development.
_40. . ‘These same risks are bome by plaintiffs Churchill County and City of
Fallon. Both of these entities are within the Newlands Project, both are Project wr;lter
rights holders, and citizens of both will be subject to the potential negative impacts
insufficiently addressed in the FEIS/EIR. Indeed, the City of Fallon owns and operates a--
municipal water system that provides drinking water o its 9000 residents. As thg city
noted in one of-its comment letters to Defendants, “[blecause the proposed ...
govémment actions described in the [REI;S)EIR] of the TROA affect the human .
environment by polentially reducing the drinking water supply for 9,000 residents, the
City of Fallon has a direct and substantial interest in ensuring that the [REIS/EIR]
comports with NEPA.” Simitarly, Churchill County is a largely agriﬁultural county with
many family farms that are-threatened with de-watering by the implerﬁentation of TROA.
Mofedver.-Churchill County citizens are threatened with decreases in their community
water supply as a result of additionat shortages ofrsupply to the Newlands Project.

41. The potential adverse conséquences of TROA encompass not only
Plaintiffs, but all of the organizations and businesses, from non-profits and non
govemnmental brganizations frade -unions and corporations, farmers and shopkeepers,

"to individuals and their families, as well as wildlife, pets and livestock, whose water
supply is governed by TROA. Because the FEIS/EIR is at bottom a lax and unreliable
document, the far-reaching and potentially devastating consequences of TROA, and the
salutary consequences of polential altematives, have never been adequately assessed.

As a California appeals court observed in Sanfa Clarita Organization For Planning The
-14 -
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Environmernt v. County of Los Angeles, (2003) 106 Cal App.4th 715, 723, when faced

by TROA is vastly greater. The.FEISIEIR's failure to acoour{t for extreme drought likely

 decisions follow all statutorily prescribed procedures and comply with all applicable laws.

with an impact report's inadequate analysis of where a development's water would come |
from, particularly in drought years, “[w]ater is 1oo important to receive such cursory

treatment.” Here the import is a thousand-fold greater, as the number of lives touched

as a result of glob‘al climate change, and the far-reacﬁing ramifications of water supply
decisions' in such a case, égain threatens harm not only to Plaintiffs, their members énd :
citizens, but to everyone within th'é constellation of water users dependent on fROA l
being the best choice. - : _

V. FIRST CLAM FOR RELIEF

(Failure To Prepare An Adequate Environmental Impact Statement In Violation Of
The National Environmgntal Policy Act and the Administrative Procedures Act)

42. | Plaintiffs héreby reallege and }eincorporate each aﬁd every par’agraph
above. | ' ) ' |

.43. NEPA requires the preparation of an environmental impact statement for
every major féderal action which may affect the quality of the human eﬁyironment. 42
U.S.C. 4332(2)(C). Agency action must be based on an adequate environmentat impact
statement that satisfies the requirements of NEPA: Sierra Club v. United Stales Dept. of |.
Trans., 310 F.Supp.2d.1 168, 1185 (D.Nev, 2004). An EIS that does not contain a
reasonable, thorough discussion of significant aspects of the probable environme_ntal
consequences, or whose form, content, and preparation fail to foster both informed
decision-making and informed public participation, }nust be set aside. /d. at 1186.

44, The APA, 5 U.S.C. §§ 551 et seq., requires that agency actions and '

The APA also requires that a reviewing court hold unlawful and set aside any agency
action if it fails to meet statutory, procedural or constitutional réquirements or if it was
arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with the law.

5U.8.C. § 706. Defendant here failed to proceed in a manner in accordance with the
-15-
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?

law and engaged in arbitrary and capricious decision making.

45. The APA authorizes federal courts fo enjoin agency activity if it fails io -
meet statutory, procedural, or constitutional requnrements or if it was arbitrary,
capricious, an abuse of discretion, of othenmse notin accordance with taw.

46. The intended agency action, the implementation of TROA, proceeds from

an inadequate environmental impact statement that does not meet the requirements of’

NEPA. The jointly issued FEIS/EIR does not satisfy NEPA, inter a)ia, in the following
ways. .

_ 47.. An Environmental Impact Statement {(“EIS") must “rigorously explore and
objecﬂ\}el;" evaluate all reasonable aliemnatives,” devoting “substantial treatment to each
alternative considered in detail, including the proposed action so that reviewers may
evaluate their comparative merils.” 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14(a)-(b). | '

48. The FEIS/EIR failed fo assess a reasonable range of altematives as ’

; required' The FEIS/EIR purported fo provide just three altematives, “No Action,” “Local

Water Supply. and TROA. But even this scant collection was illusory, as the No Action
altematiye was in essence ldenilcal to the Local Water ‘Supply altemative. Under the
Local Water Supply alternatWe all elements of Truckee Rwer reservoir operations, river -
flow management Truckee River hydroelectric plant operatlons minimum reservoir
releases, reservoir spill and precaulionary release driteria, and water exportation from
Lake Tahoe and upper Truckee River basins were presumed to be the same as under .
the No Action alternative. To the exte_nt the Local Water Supply alternative purported to
vary the' No Acﬁon alternative, it was based on speculation as to water sﬁpply options
that may, or may not, be authorized by state and local agencies if TROA is not
implemented. All of this had the effect of making the prefarred altemative—~TROA—in
effect the only agency action considered against the status quo. This amounts to no
discussion of alternatives -at all.
49. The FEIS/EIR failed to identify a legitimate basis for dismissing the
alternatives considered and rejected and TROA temms considered and rejected. Section
-16 - '

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF . o 1877500




C

\se 3:00-cv-00170-LDG-RAM  Document1  Filed 04/02/2000 Page 17 of 43

2.V of the FEIS/EIR refers to a “Report to Negotiators” that was intended to be a draft
EIS/EIR for TROA which contained "NEPA—styIé analysis of five potential project

_'alternatives" that was distributed only to TROA negotiating parties. The FEIS/EIR goes

on to say that each of these alternatives was re]écted because *[o]ne or more of the

megotiators with mandatory signature authority rejected these alternatives because of-

their potential adverse impacts to water rights.” There Is no provision in NEPA fo have a

selected group of stake holders make a prehminary determination of altematives and
{hus circumvent thorpugh asses§me_znt of ahi altematwes_. Indeed, the public inferest in
the environment and in ensuring that all reasonable alternatives ave rigorously explored
cannot be ignored or defeated by agreement of the parties. See, e.g., Simmons v.
United States Army Corp. of Engmeers 120 F.3d 664, 670 (7th Cir, 1997). And the

- stated rationale for axclusion—interference with an interested party’s water rights—puts

TROA on no better footmg than the five summarily rejected alternatives since TROA will
adversely affect Newlands Project water rights. As drafted, the F EIS/EIR calls for blind
faith in the negotiating parlies to determine feasibility of altematrves. If the negotlators

felt that the alternatives would create significant impacts not apparent in TROA, then the

. FEISIEIR was the place to fully explain the alternatives and the reasons for selécting

TROA. But the FEIS/EIR's cursory discussion of alternatives and their,bases for
exclusion does not meet ihe intent of NEPA to adequately inform the public. Nor does
the FEIS/EIR sufficiently explain its course of i |nquuy. its analysis, and its reasoning with
respect to alternatives considered, and it fails to providé necéssary back-upi data
regarding the propt;sals consid'ered- and rejected, ‘contrary to the- requirements of 40
CFR.§1502.21. ‘ '

50. The FEIS/EIR also failed to explore existing reasonable alternatives.
These reasonable altemnatives include construction of additional reservoirs; use of water
banklng or underground storage for drought protection; use of; additional capaclty in
Lahontan Reservoir; use of interbasin transfers that allow pumping of unde_rground

aquifers and-transmission of the water to the Truckee River or as a substitute for water
<17 -
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‘_ increase the supply needed for M&| or fish flows. The FEISEIR's one sentence devoled

Ditch or Alpine Decrees. And Public Law 101-618 requires full compliance with NEPA,

diverted from the Truckee River; conservation measures finariced by the parties seeking
to increase their water supply, such as piping of diverted water, additional water
metering; installation of low flow devices, channeling of the Truckee River to minimize
evaporation, planting of sttade trees to reduce temperatures, etc.; and providing a

leasing mechanism for times of 'drought when waler owners may lease their water to

to just one of these altematives, that “[clonstructing a new reservmr was not considered

.. because it would have exacerbated degradation of riverine fish and riparian habitat as
well.as created additional'cumulative environmental impact throughout the Truckee River
basin® is hardly informative. It is merely an admission that the atternative'was not
con_stdered.

51. NEPA requires that analyzed alternatives be feasible. Nevertheless, the
alternatives assessed by the FEIS/EIR do not satisfy this feasibility requirement. The
atternatuves addressed require water tobe stored and released without permission of the
owner, preclude certain storage and release for decreed water rights and users, ‘and
provrde benefits to non-water-righted uses at the expense of water-righted uses. These
actions are in conflict with § 205(a)(2) of Public Law 101-618 requiring that water is to be
stored and released from Truckee River reservoirs to satisfy exercise of water rights in
conformance with both the Orr Ditch and Truckee River General Electric decrees. In
addition, § 205(a)(1)(c) of Public Law 101-618 requires TROA to carry out the terms of -
the Preliminary Settlement Agreement between the Pyramid Lake Indian tribe and Sierra
Pacific. The stated justification for reiection of altematives is that any alternative rejected
by a party with TROA signature authority is not feasible because TROA reqoires
approval of these parties. But TROA is the sole proposed document to defermine the
operation of the Truckee Rive.r.r'eservoirs. Potential conflicts with the O Ditch and
“Truckee River General Electric Decrees are fatal to TROA. And § 210(b)(13) of Public
Law 101-618 states that the Act shall not be construed to conflict with or aiter the Orr

-18 -
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which has not been met. .

52. NEPA requires that environmental impact statements be written in plain
language so that decision makers and the public can readily understand them. See 40 .
C.F.R. § 1502.8. Statements are te be “concise, clear, and to the point and shall be
supported by evidence that the agency hae ﬁade the necessary environmental
analyses.” 40 C.F.R. § 1502.1. Ordinarily an EIS should be less than 150 pages and ho
. more than 300 pages even if pertaining fo an unusually complex prolect See 40 C.F.R.
§ 1502.7. Appendlces must include materials prepared in oonnectlon with the EIS that
substantiates analysis or is refevant to the decision to be made. See40C.FR.§
1502,18.- if not disdosed inan appendix, techniml and scientific data must be readily
avallable upon request. See 40 C.F.R. § 1502.18(d).

53. A clear understandmg of 1he FEISEIR requlres that the public first
understand TROA and what it.is attempting to accomplish. But the appendix containing
TROA is of little help. TROA is overly complex, riddled with conqumg cross-references
and gnique definitions, and generally presents a wall of obfuscatlon. It leaves the reader
feeling that somelhlng is happening with Truckee River water, but exactly what is
unclear The FEISIEIR contmues the theme. Itis the opposite of clear and.concise. It
contains a convoluted collection of definitions, jargon, and cross-references to TROA
provisions that leave plaln sense "and meaning behind. It omits any" factual scenarios
that might anchor the reader's understandmg toan actual state of affairs in the world. It
is overiong, unwieldy, and obtuse, vastly exceeding the page limitations outlined in
NEPA regulat:ons At the same time, its appendlces fail to provide necessary data
‘required to perrmt SPECIallSlS to fully analyze the scientific basis for the conclusions

reached. Materials that were prepared in connectlon with the FEIS/EIR that could be

_used to substantiate or discredit the analysis and that are relevant to the decisions at

issue were not fully disclosed in either the body of the FEIS/EIR or the appendices
thereto, and were not made readily available on request To the contrary, in an effort to

reoewe the supporlmg data and information, plaintiff TCID was forced to submit to
-19-
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. Umted States Forest Service, 177 F.3d 800, 813 (9th Cir. 1999). Bias is also shown

understatement of disadvantages, and partial disclosures revealing a “lack of open-

' namely, TROA. But there are other ways to salisfy P. L. 101-618, unconsidered by

Defendanfs formal requests pursuant to the Free_dom of Information Act (‘*FOIA”). And
even after having 1o resort to FOIA'requeststo obtain analytical back-up materials,
Defendants refused to supply key information.

54.  Anagency engages in |mpenn|ssuble bias where it cfeﬁnes the project itself

SO narrowly so as to omit reasonable attematlves See e.g., Muckleshoot Indian Tribe v.

where the agency frames the project’s purpose S0 narrowly lhat reasonable
anematives" ere-deﬁned out of e)os_tenoe. See, e.g., Simmons v. United States Army
Corps of Engineérs. 120 F.3d 664, 668 (7th Cir. 1997). And bias is _shown where the -

agency uses misleading statements, double etandards. O\Jerstatement of benefits,

rinded willingness to consider fairy all alternatives.” See, e.g., Sierra Club v. Forshlke,
345 F.Supp. 440 (W.D. Wisc. 1972). The FEIS/EIR shows mat‘Defendants were
imbenniss;bly biased in favor of TROA. I contains distortions, unsupported .
assumptions, and is propped up by a flawed and tendentious computer modeling
program. And because the FEIS/EIR has narrowly_framed the project and its purpose,
while omitting adequate explanation for its conclusions, the FEIS/EIR amountsto

Defendants lpse drx:t assertxon that there is only one way to satisfy P.L. 101-618,

Defendants including those referenced in paragraph 50 supra.

55.  NEPA limits incorporation by reference of documents into an EIS and |
requires incorporated documents to be reasonably described and available for ”
incpection. 40 C.F.R.§ 150221, -The FEIS/EIR attaches an exhibit entitled “Selected
Elements of the Report to Negotiators,” which purports to summanze parts of a pnmary
document the Report to Negotiators, and references other studles relied on. The actual
Report io Negotiators contanned a NEPA-style five-alternatives analysis that was
presented to TROA negotiating parties, bot not the public. The summary at Exhib_it Eis
partial and insufficient, justifying rejected alternatives by reference to the unproduced

-20-
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report and other unproduced studies and computer modeling efforis. The full report and
related studies should have been made adequately summarized and made available for’
review, but were not. Moreover, the Report to Negotrators was arguably Defendants’

first-tier analysis of TROA and aiternatives. See C.F.R. § 1502.20 (re tiered analysis).

As such; the report should have been produced in full and submitted to the public for

comment;

56.. NEPA also requires' that an EIS adequately describe the current
environmental setting and establish a sufficient baseline altemative. The baselme—
drawn from existing, current conditions—is the back drop against which various .
alternatives may be evaluated. See, e.g., American Rivers v. Federal Energy Regulatory
Commissions, 201 F.3d t18ti, 4195 n. 15 (Gth Cir. 2000) (internal citations omitted) -

(“wrthout establishing . . . baseline conditions . . there is simply no way to determine'

: -what effect [an action] will have on the envrronment and, consequently, no way to

comply with NEPA”). The FEIS/EIR fails to properly describe the current envrronmental
setting and fails to consider or take mto aceount important aspects of Truckee Rrver,\
management. The FEIS/EIR does not analyze cument conditions as a-separate
alternative to the No Action, Local Water Supply, and TROA altematives, resulting in the
masking ‘of TROA's true impact. When compared to the “No Action” altemative that was
examined in the FEIS/EIR, the impact of TROA appears to be signifi cantty less than
when compared to cument conditions. And while compansons to current conditions are
referred to occasionally in the FEIS/EIR, use of baseline conditions is woefully  ~
incomplete, including omission of comparisons in the vital categories of effecis on water
resources, Truckee River flow, exercise of water rights to meet demand, groundwater,
water quality, sedimentation and erosion, biolegical resources an.d recreation. Analysis
should have been presented comparing TROA to current conditions with consistency,
and in particular with respect to potential impacts and changes to the Newlands Project.
Simitarly, the FEIS/EIR does not adequately describe historic and current management
of the Truckee River, and impacts on- such management and further omits analysis of
-21-
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_dubious accuracy. Discussion of the TROM failed to provide sufficient supporting _data.to

requirements flowing from the still-valid Truckee Rivér Agreement and Orr Ditch Decree.
As a result of the failure to adequately analyze baseline conditions, the preferred agency
action, TROA, is deceptively pqrtrayed as having a lesser environmental impact than the
No Action alternative. The FEIS/EIR makes this finding despite the fact that TROA will
cause increased shortages of the water supply to the Newlands Project, Churchill
County, and the City of Fallon, with all of the attendant significant environmental impacts
such shortages will cause to the environment. More fundaméntally, because the
FEIS/EIR omits these, and other, baseline issues, its anélys;is does not satisfy NEPA
requirements. '

57." AnEIS must be based on sound and accurate scientific mformatlon and
meﬂwdotogy “Agencles shall insure the professnonal integrity, mcludmg scientific
mtegnty of the dlSOLlSSIOﬂS and analyses in envnronmental impact statements. They
shall identify any methodologles ‘used and shall make explicit reference by footnote to
the scientific and other sources relied upon for conclusions,in the statement.” 40C. F R.
§ 1502.24. An EIS that is issued without adequate information relating to a computer
model's variables or discussion and disclosure of the modef's shortcomings violates _
NEPA. See Public Lands Council v. Poweli, 379 F.3d 738, 749-50 (9th Cir. 2004).
Conclusory statements are ins:ﬁfﬁcient. énd impact étatéments should be 'rejec{ed that
“suffer from a serious lack of defail and rely on conclusions that are based on,
assumptions without supporting objective data.” -See Rankin v.-Coleman, 394 F.Supp. -
647, 656 (E.D. N.Car..197_5), quoting BrookS v. Voipe, 350 F.Sﬁpp. 269, 276-277 (W.D.
Wash, 1972), affd per curiam, 487 F.2d 1344 (9th Cir. 1973). |

58. The underlying scientific analysis and data on which the entire FEIS/EIR
depended was fatally flawed. The FEISIElR's alternatives analysis relied heavily on
computer modeling performed on the Truckee River Operations Model (‘TROM"). But

the TROM suffered from many weaknesses rendering it scnenuﬁcaliy unsound and of

back up the numerous assumptions builtinto its analysis. The TROM itself was outdated-
-22. -
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and flawed, prémised on_theoretil approaches and research metﬁods that are not
generally accepted in the scienfific corﬁmunity. The data used in the TROM was flawed
and relied on long term averages to ahalyze; irl;pacts when annual and monthly analysis .
would be both more accurate and further revea;l additional impacts. The TROM omifted
key TROA provisions and so necessarily did not anaiyze the wh-ole project. masking its
true impacts. The TROM used river flows for points on the Truckee River that are
different than the Uriited States Geological Survey’s gauging stations for histotical
streamﬂows and model output was processed using & program to estimate streamflows
at other Io-ttons The TROM failed to include crucual data that is readily avallable The
TROM itself was an outdated software platfonn that Defendants had replaced with an
updated version, but impermissibly chose not to use in connacﬂon with the FEIS/EIR.
See, e.g., Frionds of the Boundary Waters Wildemess v. Dombeck, 164 F.3d 1115, 1130
(8th Clr. 1999) (dlsputed computer model was “fully updated”). The TROM’s use of
estimates was insufficiently explained or supported. And it lacked available scientific
information that might have allowed it to make reasonable predictions. The TROM was
never calibrated, verified, or validated, nor were any sensitivity runs pen‘or!ned onit.
The TROM assumés that the néxt 100 years will be iust like the last 100 years, and
omits stochastic analyéis. And the TROM did not model extreme drought conditions
made much more likely as a result of climate change and élobal warming. in addition,
the FEISIEIR makes many assumpﬁbns that are flawed, particularly Mth respect to
water supply issues, and when mcorporaled into the TROM create error in the impact
analysis. Examples of flawed assumptions mclude failing to account for occurrences
during extreme low-flow years, The failure to mclude severe or long-ferm drought
“analysis where five to seven year droughts are ordinary is arbitrary on its face. Based
on these omissions, and others, the TROM, and hence the concluslons drawn from it
and put forth in the FEIS/EIR, do not satisfy NEPA requirements for sctennﬁc mtegnty
and soundness

59. An EIS mustinclude a deta‘ted statement regarding the environmental

-23-
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-1502:14(f) and 1502.16. Perfunctory discussion of mitigation measures will not suffice.

Indian Cemstlary Protective Ass'n v. Pelerson, 795 F. 2d 688, 697 (9th Cll‘ 1996).

.

impaict of the proposed agency action together with the identification of all adverse
impacts. 42 U.S.C. § 4332(C). It must assess the impacts of both the proposed action
and the reasonable atternatives in comparative form. 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14. NEPA also -

requires that an EIS examine the relationship between short-term uses of man's

environment and the mainienanoe and enhancement of long-term productivity, and an
exarnination of irreversible or irfefrievable commitments of resources which would be
involved in the proposal should it be 1mp|emented Examination of both direct and
indirect effects is required. 40 C.F.R. § 1508. 8. To complete the analysis, once impacts
of the proposed action and alternatives have been identified, identification and analysis

of measures to mitigate the impacts must also be presented. See 40 C.F.R. §§
They must be discussed in detail, including their fikely effectivensss. See No:thwest

Overall an EIS must demonstrate that the reviewing agency or agencies took a “hard
look” at the potential consequences of the proposed action and reasonable al!ematives.
See, e.g., Price Roéd Neighbomqod Ass'n v. United States _Dept. of Transportation, 113 ‘
F.3d 1565 (9th Cir. 1997). The FEIS/EIR does not saﬁsfy these requirements.

60. The manner in which the FEIS/EIR analyzed the proposed action as well
as the No Action and Local Water Supply alternatives, tended to mask impacts. Tﬁe
FEIS/EIR failed to adeqdalély analyze impacts from not allowin‘g return flows to the
Truckee River, from storing Newlands Project Credit Water in Stampede Reservoir on
carryover storage from looking at long term averages instead of focusing on month to
month or year to year impacts, among others. The FEIS/EIR also segmented various
proposals, again masking environmental impacts. And because the FEIS/EIR did not
adequately identify environmental impacts, it also failed to identify feasible mitigation
measures that could reduce or eliminate impacts;. The FEIS/E!R failed to sufficiently
identify TROA’s impacts, or those of the other altemnatives, and is deficient in its failure to

identify and analyze specific mitigation measures. These deficiencies are particularly
-24 - '
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acute in relation to assessment of TROA's impact on the Newlands Project. These
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-and the Pyramid Lake Reservation, the effects of this growth on highways, schools

deficiencies include use of assumptions with parameters that have not, and may never,

occur, as well as long term averages, that{ended fo hide the impacts of the proposed

action; failure to compare cumrent conditions to the proposed action that cbiscures
TROA's impacts; use of a scientifically ﬁawed and unreliable computer modcling

resulting in unrefiable findings and analysis conceming impacts; inédegue_:te assessment
of impacts on Churchill County, the City of Fallon, and the Néwlands Project; and failure
to analyze and fully develop plans for mitigation of adverse effects that will result i
TROAis implémented. The FEIS/EIR’s analysis of water use and consumption is also
flawed. Its projected water sources are speculative depending on conditions or '
agreements that may not come to pass, and the information is derived from a fatally
ﬂawed model, the TROM. The FEIS/EIR also does not account for populatson growth
and extended drought condi’uons both clearly llkely if not oertaln. outcomes. The
FEIS/EIR study- assumptsons include one that populallon growth will occur with or without
TROA. However, TROA is ~§vhat is allegedly providing drought protection for the Truckee
Meadov;s area that would allow the Truckee Meadcws Water Authority (“TMWA")-a-
TROA signatory--fo increase the population served to a projected 1 19,000 households.
If TROA did not provide.drbught protection to allow-this growth, then TMWA conld not |
issue will-serve letters to anincreased number of households. Because the net effect of

TROA s to encourage populanon growlh and development in Reno, Sparks, Femley,

hospital, and alr quality, Including its effect on and contribution to global warming and |
climate change W|th|n the region, should have been assessed in the FEISIEIR
61. An EIS must contain an adequate cumulative impact analysus A project

must be analyzed in light of the project's interaction with the effects of past, current, and

reasonably foreseeable future projects. See Lands Council v. Powell, 379 F.3d 738, 744

(9th Cir. 2004), citing 40 C.F.R. § 1508.7. “Cumulative impact is the impact on the

environment which results from the incrementa! impact of the action when addcd to other
=25 -
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‘past, present, and reasonably foreseeable futuse acfions regardiess of mrhat agency

(Federal or non;FederaI) or person undertakes such actions. Cumulative impacts can
result from individually minor but collectively significant actions taking place over time.”
40 C.F.R. § 1508.7. NEPA requires adequate cataloguing of the related projects,
including data of time, type, place, and scale of other prcrjects. Land§ Council, 379 F.3d
at 744. Moreover, the significance of the proposed éciio'n and likely impacts cannot be

_avorded by breaking an action into smaller parts if rt is part ofa comprehenswe strategy.

See Blue Mountams Biodiversity Project v. Blackwood, 161 F.3d 1208 (9th Cir. 1998).
62. The FEIS/EIR madequately assessed cumulative impacts, omitting

" necessary analysis of impacts on other projects, including the Lahontan Reservorr,

groundwater in Churchill County, the Stillwater Wildlife Refuge, Carson Lake and
Pasture, the Femley Wildlife Management Area, the Naval Air Statron at Fallon, as well
as modification of the goveming Operaling Criteria and Procedures to accommodaie

Newlands Project Credrt Water the Recoupment Judgment entered on February 15,

2005, in the case United States v. -Board of Direclors, Truckee-Carson lmgat:on District,

Nevada District Court case number 3:95-cv-00757-HDM, and the impacts of water rights
acquisition programs. The FEIS/EIR also failed to take the necessary *hard look at

increased water shortages in the Newlands Project Ilkely to result from TROA;

- environmental and economic impacts of shifting water from agricultural uses to municipal

and lndustnat uses, including lower crop yields, reduced hydroelectric power generation,

.and reducuon of water delivery fees collected by TCID; and the effect on TCID's ability to

maintain properly the canals and ditches in  the Newlands Project; environmental
impacts, including adverse |mpacts on air quality, resulting from a shift from agricultural
to non-agricultural uses; impacts on groundwater and other water resources, mcludlng
water storage and carryover storage; impacts resulting from growth inducement and
increased urban development; impacts on Pyrarmd Lake restoration efforts and impacls
resulting from mcreased recreational uses, mcludmg impacts of such use on Lahontan

Reseryoir. Forthe rmpacls not analyzed in detail, the FEIS/EIR fails to provide an
-26 -
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adequate factual basis for the conclusion that there were no significant impacts or that
impact analy31s was not requued The failure to analyze the foregoing impacts renders
the FEIS/EIR inadequate under NEPA. .

63. NEPA also requires that an agency acknowledge when there is incomplete
or unavailable information from which to evaluate reasonably foreseeable significant
ad.verse effects on the human environment. 40 C.F.R. § 1508.22. Where such
information is known to be |acking, an FélSIElR must provide a statement that it is
incomplete or unavailable, a statement of the relevance of the mcomplete or unavailable
information to impacts evaluation, a summary of existing credlble scientific evidence, and .

an assessment of impacts based on theoretical approaches or generally accepted

_ research methods. “Reasonably foreseeable includes impacts which have catastrophic

conseguences, even if their probability of occumence is low ... [ Id. Given the large
amount of missing or unreliable information in relation to TROA computer modeling, the
FEIS/EIR should have acknowledged the lack of information about the eﬁecis of TROA,
assessed the relevance of the mlssmg lnformatlon and proceeded to address all
reasonably foreseeable consequences, mcludmg catastrophic consequences. This was
not done. Instead the FEIS/EIR proceeds as if the TROM were reliable and omits
assessment of key potential negative outcomes. . '

64. AR EIS must address the entire project, not just portlons of it. Analyzmg
only portlons of a project is impermissible because it tends to mask potential
environmental impacts. 40 C F.R. § 1508.25(a); Cady v. Morton, 527 F.2d 786, 795
(Sth Cir. 1975) (EIS covering only a portnon of proposed strip mining operation
impermissibly segmented project).

65. The FEIS/EIR does not address the entire project, but rather segments it
and fails to adequately addrass future actions necessitated by TROA. Reference is
made to Newlands Project Credit Water but use of the credit water is not modeled in the
TROM or addressed in the FEIS/EIR. Reference is made to storage of credit water in

Donner Lake, but Donner Lake storage rights are owned as-an undivided interest
.27 -
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between TCID and Sierra Pacific. No use of Donner Lake for credit storage under TROA
can. be made without permission from TCID. The TROA discussion states thiat oertain
provisions of the Truckee River Agreement would be changed but does not adequately
describe the changes, or explain why such changes are necessary or how fhe TRA has
been used to manage the Truckee River for the last 69 years. 'Ihe section on Reservoir
Operations purports to allow TMWA to exchange water in Donner Lake for Fish Credit
Water. Again, since the water in Donner Lake owned by TMWA is an undivided one-half
interest in. common with T CID, any use of such water as Fish Credir Water can only be
done with 'the'expre'ss consent of TCID. The reference to Newlands Project.Credit

Waler being removed for Lahontan Reservoir is unsupportable since this is being

- segmented from the TROA proposal and it cannot be accomplished without the

pemission of Newlands Project water rights owners. In addition, Fernley Credit Water
has been segmented in the FEIS/EIR analysis.
66. By the foregoing actions and omissions, Defendants impemissibly created

and approved a legally madequete EIS which procedurally and substanhvety failed to

" satisfy the requrrements of NEPA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 et seq. Inso doing, Defendants

vmlated the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2), by acting arbitrarily, capncrously, in.an abuse of

drscretlon, not in accordance with the law and/or without observance of procedures

V. SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation Of The Administrative Procedure Act),

67. Plaintiffs hereby reallege and reincorporate each and every paragraph
above. ' |

.68. "~ Agency rule making is subject to judicial review under the Administrative
Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 702. Public Law 101-618, § 205(a)(5), provides that

prornulgation of TROA as a federal regulation is subject to judicial review under the

' standard set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)A)-(D).

69. Because the substance of TROA as a regulalion is 1dent|cal with TROA as
-928-
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an adopted agency actxon under NEPA, the infirmities relating to TROA set forth in
Plaintiffs” First Claim For Relief are applicable to the TROA as a federal ru!e Additional

‘Infirmities with TROA as an instance of agency action and rule making include:

70. TROA violates the Om Ditch decree. ‘Tha.t.decre_e prohibits anyone “from
ever taking, diverting, using or claiming any of the water so decreed, in any manner or at
any time so as to in any way interfere with prior rights of any other persons or parties
under this decree.' (O Ditch Decree at p. 87.) Defendants' own biased computer
modeling shows TROA resulting in decreased water supply to the Carson Division of the |
Newlands Project, in violation of decreed rights. '

71. TROA also allows the use of historical retumn flows in a fashion that injures

~ existing ﬁgnts in violation of the Om Ditch Decree. For example, under TROA, the

consumptive use portion of unused and excess agricultural rights con\)erted to M&l -

purposes by TMWA will be stored in Truckee River reservoirs as M&J Crednt Water for

' subsequent release to meet M&I demands or if unused, converted to Fish Credit Water

and released at times contrary ‘to historical flow pattems. Later releases of stored credit
waters will likely occur during fimes when Truckee River stréamflows are significantly”

less than the streamflows occurring at the time the water is stored. Thus, TROA resuits

In a greater likelihood for increases in stream conveyance losses to decreed right

holders. In addition, if historical flows are converted to Fish Credit Water and released
when TCID is not allowed to divert, they.will flow past Derby l")am to Pyramid Lake, thus
causing additional shortages to the Newlands Project and to the communities of Femley:
Fallon and Churchill County. .

72.  TROA violates the Orr Ditch Decree by establishing water categories
unrecognized by the decree, such as fish credit wéter then improperly elevating the'
priority of such water, in violation of the decree, by treating it in the fashion of privately
owned storage water to which no transportation losses are applied until released waler
reaches its new point of diversion.

73, TROA further violates the Orr Ditch Decree by allowing storage and re-

-29-
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categorization of water previously intended for hydroelectric power generation, a non-

consum;itive. use. Under the O Ditch Decree water used by Slerra Pacific Power

- Company ("SPPC") and the Truckee Meadows Water Authority ("TMWA”) for’

hydroelectric generation is retumed to the river and available for diversion by TCID.
Under TROA, TMWA and SPPC are now permnitted to store hydroelectric power

generation water and then convert it to Fish Credit Water, a consumptlve use, that

bypasses Derby Dam and is unavailable for diversion by TCID

- 74.  Storage in upstream reservoirs authorized by TROA is to the detnment of
L.ake Tahoe, again in violation of the Orr Ditch Decree. Under TROA, water that would
otherwnse be credited into storage in Lake Tahoe will be stored elsewhere resulting in
artificial decredse of Lake Tahoe's water level, adversely affecting rights under Claims
No. 3 and 4 of the Orr Ditch Decree. This decrease also is contrary to the requirements
of the Settlemerit Act which states that TROA should include “methods to diminish the
Iikehhood })f Lake Tahoe dropping below its natural rim.” .

75. TROA also will result in negative impacts to groundwater that is
hydrotogically connected to the Truckee River. The Truckee Rivers provndes recharge of
the groundwater aquifer in Hydrographic Basin 87, which- TMWA uses as a substantral
source of water Because water that would otherwise flow in the river will be stored in
upsiream reservoirs, recharge of the groundwater aquifer in Hydrographic Basis 87 will

be decreased and-greater amounts of remaining Truckee River ﬂow will be required to

" recharge the aqurfer thus impairing Orr Ditch decreed water rights.

76.° TROA v:olates the “58 Percent Rulg” reached in connection with pnor
applications relating to Orr Ditch decreed water rights. TCID protested a prior change in

Orr Ditch Decree water rights to M&! use in 1989. In its rufing, the Nevada State

» Enginéer determined that there would be no injury to the Newlands Projectas a resuit of

the change to M&I, in part, due fo the operation of the “58 percent rule.” Under this rule,
an applicant for service in Truckee Meadows had to acquire 1.72 acre-feet of water in

order to deliver one-acre foot, and thus, 58 percent was the maximum amount of water
-30-
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thaf could be obtained from an irﬁgatiqn right, leaving 42 percent continuing downstream -
and available for diversion to the Newlands Project. The changes in water storage rules
encompassed by TROA result in a reduction of Truckee River flow guaranteed under the
previously adjudicated 58 percent 'rule. further injuring Newland Project water rights in .
violation of the Orr Ditch Decree. |

77. TROA also violates the Truckee River Agreemenl (“TRA". The TRAwas a
negotiated settlement of disputes among the parties to the Orr Ditch Decree. The TRA
addressed i |ssues on severa| levels, including allocating rights to the Truckee River,
recognizing specrﬁc claims to be included in the final decree, setting rates of flow in the
river, allowing for construction of supplemental reservoirs, recognition of privately owned
stored water, settlng of dwer5|ons by SPPC for Municipal and Domeshc uses, allowing
use’of water for power generatlon allocatmg of Diveried Flow to TCID and the Washoe

County water Conservation District ("Conservation District”), and creating the framework

| sor managing the Truckee River. The TRA was used as the basis for a stipulation that

allowed the entry of the final Orr Ditch Decree and once a party signed the stipulation,
the signing party could not rescind its signature and the e*ecution of the stipulation is
irevocable. The TRA is incorporated into the Orr Ditch Decree as a part of the decree
itself. See Orr Ditch Decree at -p.r 86.

78. The TRA contains specific language which makes it b_indiﬁg on all of the
signatories, including the United States, SﬁPCN MWA, TCID, the Water Conservation
District and the individual water right owners on the Tn:|ckee River. There is no provision
fdr modifying the TRA. Under the TRA the Truckee River has been jointly managed by
the Uniled States, TCID, SPPC/TMWA, the Conservation District, and.the Federal Water
Master for more than ;10 years. TROA purports to *supersede” the TRA, vesting
management of the Truckee River in a sub-set of the signatories, the United States and
TMWA, and granting rights 16 a non-signatory to the TRA, the Pyramid Lake Paiute
Indian Tribe (“PLIT"). TROA further abrogates the TRA by subsuming the Federal Water

Master's role into that of an "Administrator' controlled by the United States, TMWA and
-31-

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ’ 1877500.1




Cs

0w O N O ;s W N =

NN NN NN NN 2 A '
BN ESREBRNRNBEBI oI ar an 3 o

se 3:00-cv-00170-LDG-RAM  Document 1 Filed 04/02/2008  Page 32 of 43

PLIT. But 1"ROA cannot "subersede" the TRA as articulated in TROA §5.A.1(a) without
the agreement of all the TRA signatories, including TCID. Nor can a subset of TRA
signatories unilaterally dispose of-and replace,it witha different management scheme
without the consent of all parties to the TRA. |

" 79.  Under the TRA Floriston Rates in the Truckee River must be maintained at

: establrshed levels and any change to such rates requires agreement of TRA signatories.

But under TROA the TROA signatories may agree to a reduction in flow rates in
exchange for storage credit in the upstream reservorrs As aresult, itis lrkeiy that less
water will be avarlable for diversion by the Newlands Project, Churchrll County and the
City of Fallon at D,erby Dam. Intum, the Newlands Project may not have access to
adequate amou~nts of water to meet their rights. TROA changes the rules for distribution
and storage of water in the- Truckee River Baein.in contradiction to the'terms of the TRA,
while TROA lacks external authority for “superseding” the TRA and Orr Ditch Decree.

This change in the distribution and storage of water harms the prior existing water rights

- of the farmers of the Newlands Project, which were guarérrteed under the Orr Ditch

Decree.

80. Water in Boca Reservoir or Lake Tahoe water may not be used as
proposed under ‘lROA 'These water bodies are subject to the terms of tl're TRA, to
which the TROA parties are bound. Changes in the flow from Boca Reservoir require
the consent of TCID Several new reservoirs have been added to the Truckee River
watershed that drd not exrst when the TRA was executed. These reservoirs are part of
the Washoe Prorecl and include Prosser Reservoir and Stampede Reservoir. All
Washoe Project Reservoirs, including Prosser Reservoir and Stampede Reservorir, .must
also be operated based on Floriston Rates. These reservoirs are managed in- |
conjurrctlon with the other reservoirs serving the Truckee River basin. TROA failé.to
show that the proposed dlversion and use of water is consistent with the management
redime of the Truckee River as set forth in the TRA and the Orr Ditch Decree.

81. TROA also irrrpermissibly supersedes the allocation of “Diverted Flow”

-32-
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~such walter is part of the Diverted Flbw and is subject to the TRA. This provision has the

users. TROA thus impermissibly strips rights valid under the TRA and Orr Ditch Decree

reservation that it is ﬁot to be construed to alter or conflict with any existing rights to use

under the TRA. The TRA provides that Diverted Flow (essentially all water rights that
are diverted along the Truckee River) is allocated thirty-one percent to TCID for use in ‘
the Newlands Prdject and sixty-nine peroént {o the Conservation District, subject fo the
rights of S;PPC in Article V of the TRA. The TRA further gives TCID the right to divert
and use any unused part of the sixty-nine percent. TROA r'nakés no provisioh for this

term in the TRA, énd under TROA the right to the hirty-one percent Diveried Flow, and

use of the sixty-nine percent remainder, islostto TCID as itis recétegorized as fish
water which will in tumn flow bast Derby Dam and be made unavailable for diversion to

TCID, ' water is being declared as excess and allowed to be converted to Credit Water,

effect of elevating Fish Credit Water to a higher priority than decreed water under the Or

Dltch Decree.
82. TCIDrelies on the historic flow pattem of the Truckee River, established by

Floriston Rates. to prowde water rights to the Newlands Project. But TROA creates a
new category of water—Credit Water—that is not recognized by the TRA or the Orr Ditch
Decree and allows water that would otherwise be used to maintain Floriston Rates to be

converted to Fish Credit Water unavailable for diversion by TCID and other downstream

in favor of a scheme that reapportions those rights without process or agreement of the -
derogated right holder. _ '
83. TROA also impemmissibly violates Public Law 101-618 (the "Settlament

Act?), the very law which called for its creation. The Settlement Act contains a

Truckee River water in accordance with the Orr Ditch and Truckee River General Electric
Decrees. See § 265(6)(2) of i’.L.101~61 8. Thus, the foregoiﬁg violations of provisions of
the Orr Ditch Decree and TRA entailed by TROA are themselves violations of the
Settlement Act. - . '
84. TROA also directly undercuts a stated requirement of TROA set forth in the
.-83-
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_Settlement Act, namely, fulfilling the goals of the Endangered Species Act by promoting |

the e-nhancement- and recovery of the Pyramid Lake fishery. See Settlement Act §§ -
202(f) and 205(a)(2)(B). There is substantive evidence suggestlng that TROA wrll lead to
a substantial decline in the populatron of the endangered cu-cui ﬁsh popu!auon in
Pyramid Lake. As such, TROA violates the Settlement Act.

85 Section 210{a)(2)(B) of the Settlement Act does not allow TROA or the
Interstate Allocation of waters under the Settlement Act to occur until the PLIT's claims
to unappropriated water are resolved in a manner sausfactory to the PLIT and the State
 of Nevada. Such claims are still pending. Both TCID and PUT have competing '

appllcalrons (TCID's filed in 1930 PLIT's in 1994 and 1996) for unappropriated water on
the Truckee river whrch are subject to as-yet unresolved court challenges. Similarly, in
2003 the BOR applied for approval to capture additional Truckee River waters to be
-stored in Stampede Reservoir. Tﬁis application appeiars alsoto eompete with PLIT's
application for purportedly unappropriated Truckee River waters. Until these
" applications are finally defermined, it is premature to assume that PLIT will be “satisfied”
with the final outcome of the competing clarms to unappropnated water. ’
86. TROA violates the Supreme Court's declsion in Nevada v. U.S. (1983) 463
'U.S. 110 (1983) wherein it deterimined that the United States was prohibited, based on
entry of the TRA and the Ot Ditch Decree, from reallocating the water of the Truckee
River. TROA purports to create camyover storage rights in the upstream reservoirs and
even removes water from storage in Lahontan Reservoir which is then stored in these
upstream reservoirs, ostensrbly for the purpose of preventing spills at Lahontan. These,
provisions are designed to hold water that is part of the Newlands Project water right
owners carryover storage right in Lahontan, in the upstream reservoirs where it will be
converted to fish water for the benefit of the PLIT. This is exactly the type of reallocation
that was barred by the U.S. Supreme Court in 1983. '
87. . Provisions for the handling of credit water under TROA conflict with OCAP.
_Under TROA, control of Newlands Project Credit Water (*NPCW") shifts from TCID to
-34-
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the United States and the provisions for NPCW result in a diminution of actual credit
water currently available to TCID via OCAP.

88. TROA results in violation of Califomia law. The use of water stored in

_Stampede Reservoir is subjectto a Califomia State Water Resources Controi Board

permit. Stampeda Reservoir's original application and resulting permit reqmre that
Stampede Reservow water be released for use within the Newlands Project for |rngat|on
purposes Nevertheless, under TROA Stampede Reservoir water will instead be moved

between Truckee River Reservoirs to facilitate releases of Fish Water fo Pyramid Lake,

- providing no beneficial use 1o the Newlands Project and directly violating the termsA of the

Stampede Researvoir peimit and California Water Code §§ 1825 and 1831.

89. TROA also provides that NPCW not required for diversion to the Newlands
Project {pursuant to Truckee Canal Diversion Criteria) will be reclassif' ed as Addltlona!
Boca Storage Water, Independence Lake Privately Owned Stored ‘Water and Fish Water
or Fish Credit Water depending on a set of characteristics and qual:ﬂcatlons. As with
many other TROA components this TROA provision impermissibly converts the |
Newlands Pro;ect’s Orr Ditch decreed water rights to types of water that do not haVe a
decreed water right — Additional Boca Storage Water, lndependenoe Lake Prwately
Owned Stored Water (which supplies the Truckee Meadows) and Fish Water or Fish
Credit Water, for the benefit of Pyramid Lake. Bureau of Reclamahon OCAP policies on
the implementation of Newlands Project Credit Waler also convert Newlands Project

Credit Water to water for cui-ui Tecavery where Newlands Project Credrt Water remains

' in storage in Truckee River reservoirs at the end of the irrigation season. These

- provisions impermissibly abrogate valid, emstlng Newlands Project water rights.

g0. TROA also assumes that privately owned water can be used without
permission and for purposes barred by private agreements TCID and TMWA are the
sole tenant-in-common owners of water rights in Donner Lake. Operation of Donner
Lake is governed by an agreement related to “Donner Lake Operation and Maintenance

Cost Sharing and Use of Donner Lake Water,” ( Agreement') entered into by TCID and
-35-
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Sierra Pacific, the predecessor in interest to TMWA in May 1943. The Agreement

specifies all permissible uses of Donner Lake water and mandates that releases shall be

for the sole use and benefit of the parties to the Agreement.

91. TROA ignores the fact that TMWA only owns an undivided one-half mterest
in the water, and that the Donner Lake water even after it is used by TMWA istobe -
retuned to the Truckee River after September 15 of each year so that it can flow
downstream to Derby Dam to be diverted for the Newlands Praoject. Instead TROA
falsely assumes that Donner Lake water can be partitioned, contrary to the Agreement
and used by TMWA in whatever fashion it cares to. The issues of whether Donner Lake
water may be partmoned and whether it may be used for purposes other than those

specified in the partles private Agreement is currently the subject of litigation in

California Superior Court (T tuckee-Carson Irrigation District v. Sierra Pacific Power Co..

" et al., Nevada County Case No. T06-2239C). Until such t_lme as that action is ‘

concluded, it is premature for TROA to assume that Donner Lake water may be
partitioned and used by TMWA without fimitation. , '

92. TROA also calls for Credit Water and- iject Water to be used to meet
increased minimurn releases for Donner Lake. Included in the definition for Project .
Water contained in TROA is Privately Owned Stored Water (POSW) in Donner Lake,.
apparently, and without any authority, including the water in Donner Lake owned by
TCID. T _ ~

93. TROA also purports to allow TMWA to exchange water in Donner Lake for
Ftsh Credit Water. Since the water i Donner Lake owned by TMWA is an undivided
one half interest in common with the TClD any use of such water as Fish Credit Water
can only be done with the express consent of TCID and would otherwise be a breach of
the Agreement. Reference is also made in TROA 1o storage of credit water in Donner
Lake. Likewise, no use of Donner Lake for credit storage under TROA can be made
without permission from TCID, and would otheswise be a breach of the Agreement.

TCID has not given such permission and does not plan to allow such use of Donner
-36 -
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Lake water.

- 94, Asnotedin Plaintiffs’ First Claim for Relief, comments to the TROA
FEIS/EIR include numerous comments criticat of the computer model used to negotiate
and develop TROA. The responses to these comments did not address thé fundamental
flaws in the TROA model. These flaws were known to the TROA negotiators and
signaton'es as far back as 1996, yet it appears nothing was done to comect the errors
and unceriainty in the mode. . _

" 85. The United Statee govemment's own experts had no faith in the operating
model. Internal men'_ioranda'fro'm the U.-S: Geological Survey include comments such as.
“It is extremely difficult to separate whether operations are simply personal estimates
(usually w:ih little justiﬁcatron) on processes and constants, or whether the choices are
actually based or rational analysis or dictated by court cases;” “Because of the lack of a
clear understanding of the model's operatron. 1 do not think one can assure the model
results are valid;" “[Tlhe TROA model is such a patchwork of assumptions, physrcal and
political simplifications, and convoluted code that it is difficult to say what the output
results might represent or whether they ap_pro'ach a realistic representation ot the water.
system.” These admissions indicate Defendants were well aware of the unreliable basis
for TROA |tseif but proceeded o promulgate it as a federal rule nevertheless.

g6. TROA additionally violates the separation of powers doctrine under which
the executive, legislative and judicial branches of government must be kept distinct to
prevent abuse of power. Under TROA the Water Master appointed by the Om bitch
Court to carry out and enforce the provisions of the Decree is replaced by an
Administrator nominated by a committee of TROA signafories, whose nomination must
be approved by the “sovereign® TROA signatories (Umted States, Nevada, Califomia,
and PLIT), and who can only be removed by these same parties. Replacing the Water
Master with the Admmrstrator who is appointed based on the preference of TROA
srgnatones interferes with the O Ditch Court's authority ‘and violates the separation of

powers doctrine.
.37 -
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97. Similarly, TROA requires that administrative remedies be exhausted before
a Special Hearing Officer appomted by a four-member commlttee of the sovereign TROA
signatories. These prowslons grant enfirely too much’ dGCISIOD making power for
managing the Truckee River to the TROA Signatories. Even if the O Ditch Court may
ultimately hear a dispute involving decreed water rights, the-initial administrative
deiermination will be tainted with bias-and the burden will likely be placed on those
parties who are not signatories to TROA. | .

98. TROA violates a number of Nevada Water code provisions. Under TROA,

water rights owners will stor'e water in the upstream reservoms in Cahfomla and will

purportedly place the water 1o benef‘ cial uses in California and Nevada as setforth in
applications for secondary permits. The secondary permit appllcatnons already filed

under TROA by TMWA identify at least three separate and distinct uses for the same

_water, including municipal, wildlife and power generation. The use of the same water for

‘multiple pu}poses‘at multiple places of use violates NRS §533.330, which only.pemits a

water right to be used for a smgle purpose at a single place of use.- By the use of-
multiple secondary applications, TROA lmproperly cm:umvents the jurisdiction of the
State Engineer and the Orr Dnch Court, depnvmg them of their authority to review
changes-in manner and place. of use and to determme for each ohange whether itis
detrimental to the public mterest or if it will injure existing water nghts

89. The storage, accumulation, trade, exchange, and multiple uses of water
under the TROA management scheme also violates NRS §533.040, which requires that
water used for beneficial purposes to remain appurjenant to a single place of use.
Under TROA, there.is no way for the State Engineer or other water users to determine
when water is traded or'exchahged and whether it remains appurtenant to the piace of
use. TROA allows changes without any notide SO that itis impossible to determine if the
water is being used at the single place of appurtenancy

100. Under NRS §533. 045 the right to divert water ceases when neoesslty for

" its use does not exist, and Water may not be diverted or uséd except at such times as

-38 -
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' the water is required for a beneficial purpose. And the right to use water is limited to the

amount necessary, and when water is not necessary it must be allowed to flow in the

river and cannot be considered fo have been appropriated. NRS §533. 060. TROA's

provisions, allowing carry over storage and conversion to fish credit water, violates these

statutory provisions. lfthe water Is not necessary, then there is no rightto divert and
store it under TROA, and the water should remain In the river.and not be credit stored.
Requiring water tnat is not necessary for use to remain in the river is also in lire with the
TRA saved water and diverted flow requrrements

101. Appropriate Iosses for storage and conveyance of water mustbe -

" getermined by the State Engineer. NRS §533.055. TROA provides that conveyance

losses shatl be_ calculated by the Admlnrstrator using procedures developed by the
Administrator. This is a clear violation of NRS §533.055 and directly interferes with the
authority of the State'Engineer ) '

' 102. TROA specrﬁcally contemplates exchanging water by dwertrng it and

- replacing water with.a compensating release, including exchanges for Fish Water or Frsh

Credit Water specifically designed to flow to Pyramid Lake. Once water :s credit stored
TROA provrdes that it may be traded by Scheduling Parties with approval of the.TROA
Administrator. The State Engineer will have no opportunity o approve these "trades}'
Thus, under TROA, the water user is. permitted to decide when, how much and where
the water can be transferred to during any given year without any further scrutiny by the
State of Nevada, and as establrshed by the Orr Ditch Court.

103. TROA also violates Nevada law and the Reclamation Act by creating new
purposes for water subject to already-existing, binding category deierminations and
allowing such changes to occur without the required formal approval prooesa.

104. By the foregoing actions and omissions in evaluating, drafting, _and
promulgating TROA as a federal regulation, Defendants violated the APA, 5 usS.cC.§
706(2), by acting arbitrarily, capriciously, in an abuse of discretion, not in accordance

with the law and/or without observance of procedures required by law.
-39-
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III
1t

: VIl. THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation Of The Federal Advisory Committee Act and the Administrative

~ Procedure Act)
105. Plaintiffs hereby reallege and teincorporate each and every paragraph
ahove. '
106. .The Federal Advisory Committee Act (“FACA"), 5U.S.C. Appendix Il, §§ 1

ot seq., imposes requtrements on agencies when they establish or utilize any advisory .

_committee, which is defined as a group, of individuals,. including at least one non-federal

employee, that p'rovides collective advice or recommendations to the agency. 5U.S.C.
App. I, § 3(2). When an agency seeks to obtain such advica or recommendatlons it
must ensure the advisory commitiee is “in the public interest,” /d. App. I, § 9 (a)(2) is
“fairly balanced in terms of points of view represenied and the function to be performed,”
id. & 5(b)(2). and does not contain members With inappropriate special Interests id §
5(b)(3). Ifthese criteria are satisfied, the agency must file a charter for the committee.
Id. §9(c).

107. Once an advisofy committee is operating, the agency also must comply

with requurements de3|gned to ensure pubhc access and pamclpatlon Among other

'

i requurements. an advisory commitiee must provide adequate public notice of, and

conduct, open meetings, id. § 10(a), and must make transcripts of meetings available to
the public. /d. §§ 10(b) 11(a). In addttlon. all documents made available to, or prepared |
by, an adwsory commiittee. must be publicly accessnble id § 10(b) A federal employee

“must also cha!r or attend each advisory committee meeting. 1d. § 10(e).

108. The TROA negotlatlon process was subject to the requirements of the
FACA. TROA negotiation meetings were compnsed of a fixed roster of attendees who
were used as a source of advice and recqmmendations to the DOVBOR. Indeed, the

FEIS/EIR indicates that the DOI/BOR relied on advice and recommendations of
- 40 - '
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particular TROA negotiating pames each with its own interest to promote, to reject water
allocation models other than TROA. And it is known that most of the computer modeling
jor TROA was accomplished by a private party, SPPC, and most of the drafting of the
document, which was intended to be and in fact bécarhe a federal.rule. was done by the
attomey for SPPC. - '

109. Defendants were required to ensure that TROA negollatmg participants’
advice to the agency would be "in the public interest,” "fairly balanced in terms of points
of view represented and the functlon tobe performed and would not contain members,
with mappropnate special interests. This was not done. Furthermore, the agency did not
file a charter for the committee as required. Nor were financial disclosure ﬁlings made
by committee members.

110 " In addition, the DOI/BOR did not provide adequate public nohce of TROA
negotlatlon sessions and did not conduct them as open meetings. DOVBOR has not
madeiranscrip'ts of meetings available to the public nor made publicly. accessible all
documents made available or prepared By _thé TROA advisory committee. :

111. By the foregoing actions. and omissions Defendants violated the FACA, 5
U.S.C. Appendix I1, §§ 1 étsat'l., éﬁd the APA, 5 U.S.C._§ 706(2), by acting arbitrarily,
capriciously, in an abuse of discretion, not in accordance with the law and/or without
observance of procedures rgquired by law. ;

VIil. FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
" (Injunctive Relief)

112. Plalntiffs hereby reallege and reincorporate each and every paragfaph

above. _ ' | ‘

| 113. Unless preliminary and pemmanent injunctions are issued enjoining
Defendants from implementing TROA, Plaintiffs, their members and residents living
within the Newlands Project and subject to TROA, will suffer ireparable harm.

114. Plaintiffs do not have a speedy or adequate remedy at law because

Defendants actions pose an immediate danger to the heaith and safety of Plaintiffs, their
-41 - '
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members and residents living Wlthln the Newlands PFOjeCt and subject to TROA.
WHEREFORE Ptaintiff prays for relief as follows
A. An order declaring that the FEIS/EIR dld not comply with NEPA and the
APA. .
B. An 6rder declaring that TROA as a federal regutation does not comply with

C.  Anorder setting aside the FEIS/EIR and the subsequent Notice of Decision
and requiriﬁg the Defeﬁdants to prepare a supplemental and adequate Environmeﬁtél
Impact Statement conforming to the requirements of NEPA. '

D. An order setiing aside TROA as a federal regulation.

E. . Aninjunction preVeniing Defendants from taking action to implement TROA
asa federél regulation and as the operating agreement governing storage and release of
waters from the Truckee River until such time as (1) a supplemental Environmental
impact Statement/Environmental Imbact Report with adeguate analysis of TROA's
impacts and reasonable altematives to TROA is completed and approved_; (2)a

reasonable substantive and procedural basis is established for a revised federal rule that |’

is not viclative of the APA,; (3) the requirements of FACA ate established and satisfied in.

“connection with a revised and reevaluated TROA.

F. That the Court grant Plaintiffs their costs of suit including reasonable expert

witness and attomey fees.

G.  Thatthe Court grant such further and other relief as the Court deems just

and proper. : Co '
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DATED: April 2, 2009

DATED: April 2, 2009

DATED: April 2, 2009 -

?ase 3:09-cv-00170-LDG-RAM  Document 1 Filed 04/02/2009  Page 43 of 43

HANSON BRIDGETT LLP

By: /SI Michael J. Van Zandt
. MICHAEL J. VAN ZANDT
Aitorneys for Plaintiff -
TRUCKEE-CARSON IRRIGATION
DISTRICT : ) ’

MACKEDON, MCCORMICK & KING

_ By:_/S! Michael F. Mackedon =

MICHAEL F. MACKEDON
Attorneys for Plaintiff
CITY OF FALLON

CHURCHILL COUNTY DISTRICT
ATTORNEY'S OFFICE )

By /S/ Rusty D. Jardine _

RUSTY D. JARDINE '
Attorneys for-Plaintiff
CHURCHILL COUNTY
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